

# **Cabinet**

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Cabinet held on Tuesday 15 March 2016 at 4.00 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room GO2A, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT: Councillor Peter John OBE (Chair)

Councillor Ian Wingfield Councillor Fiona Colley Councillor Stephanie Cryan Councillor Barrie Hargrove Councillor Richard Livingstone

Councillor Darren Merrill Councillor Victoria Mills Councillor Michael Situ Councillor Mark Williams

# 1. APOLOGIES

There were none.

# 2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair gave notice that supplemental documentation for the following item of business would be considered for reasons of urgency to be specified in the relevant minutes:

Item 16: Motions Referred from Council Assembly.

# 3. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN A CLOSED MEETING, AND ANY REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

No representations were received in respect of the items listed as closed business for the meeting.

# 4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

There were none.

# 5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

There were none.

# 6. MINUTES

# **RESOLVED:**

That the open minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2016 be approved as a correct record and signed by the chair.

# 7. DEPUTATION REQUESTS

The leader acknowledged receipt of a deputation request from the Aylesbury Leasehold Action Group. As the group were in correspondence with the cabinet member for regeneration and homes on the issues raised, it was advised that this should continue before cabinet considers whether or not to hear their request. The deputation procedure rules provide that when a request has an alternative means of expressing their views through recognised channels that this option should be followed in the first instance.

# 8. PETITION FROM THE FEMINIST LIBRARY

#### **RESOLVED:**

That a petition from the Feminist Library be considered.

Following the presentation, cabinet members offered a six-month extension on the lease of the premises and support in finding a new location within that period.

# 9. SOUTHWARK COUNCIL AND OLD VIC STAGE BUSINESS PROGRAMME

# **RESOLVED:**

That progress on the delivery of Stage Business, an innovative education project supporting young people in Southwark through culture and the arts, be noted.

# 10. RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 'RIGHT TO BUY' FOR HOUSING ASSOCIATION TENANTS AND THE FORCED SALE OF COUNCIL PROPERTIES

# **RESOLVED:**

That the proposed response to the overview and scrutiny committee report on 'Right to buy' for housing association tenants and the forced sale of council properties as set out in the report be agreed.

# 11. ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

# **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That the results of the public consultation of the draft asset management strategy be noted, noting the feedback within Appendices 1-3 of the report.
- 2. That the asset management strategy within Appendix 5 of the report be approved.
- 3. That the strategy will be publicised and made widely available as outlined in the communications section of the report (paragraph 36) be approved.
- 4. That the resources outlined for 2016/17 as outlined in paragraph 59 of the report be approved.
- 5. That the revised standard which maintains decency and delivers the kitchen and bathroom guarantee alongside cyclical decorations be noted.
- 6. That it be noted that the asset management strategy sets out a delivery timetable for:
  - a) Maintaining a high level of decency
  - b) Delivering a cyclical works programme
  - c) Completing the kitchen and bathroom programme within the first cycle of the programme
  - d) Delivering a mechanical and electrical programme
  - e) Bringing the building components of all properties to a Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) 'tolerable' level by the end of the first cycle of the programme.
- 7. That it be noted that there will be an annual update report on the delivery of the strategy and resources will be agreed annually through the financial business plan.

# 12. DEVELOPMENT VIABILITY SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD)

# **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That the Development Viability SPD for adoption (Appendix A of the report) be agreed.
- 2. That the Consultation Report (Appendix B of the report) be noted.
- 3. That the Equalities Analysis (Appendix C), SEA Screening Assessment and Statement of Reason (Appendix D), Viability SPD Habitat Regulations Assessment (Appendix E) be noted.

# 13. FIVE YEAR FORWARD VIEW OF HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE IN SOUTHWARK

# **RESOLVED:**

That the Five Year Forward View of Health and Social Care in Southwark be reviewed and endorsed.

# 14. WORKFORCE STRATEGY UPDATE

# **RESOLVED:**

- 1. That the updates made to the council's workforce strategy be noted.
- 2. That it be noted that the strategy is being refreshed and will be presented to cabinet in October 2016.

#### 15. EXTENSION OF THE VOLUNTARY REDUNDANCY OFFER

# **RESOLVED:**

That it be agreed:

- 1. To extend the provisions of the enhanced voluntary severance scheme for a further six months, up to 30 September 2016.
- 2. That employees are allowed to apply for voluntary severance until 30 June 2016, with applications considered on a monthly basis by chief officers for final decision by the chief executive. Where an application is agreed the employee must leave on or before 30 September 2016.

That it be noted:

- 3. That the terms of the amended scheme will include a clause advising that employees will not be permitted to undertake paid work for the council; including work through an employment agency, as an interim or consultant, or on a temporary or permanent contract, for at least twelve months after their last day of service.
- 4. That the scheme will also be updated to allow approval of applications for other valid business reasons that relate to an individual employee.

# 16. MOTIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL ASSEMBLY

The supplemental documentation for this item had not been circulated five clear days in advance because the overview and scrutiny committee meeting which produced the additional recommendation was held on 10 March 2016.

# **RESOLVED:**

# **ENVIRONMENT, PUBLIC REALM AND REGENERATION**

That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set out below, be noted:

# Regeneration

1. That council assembly recognises that Southwark is one of the most exciting boroughs in the country in terms of regeneration, with significant investment in the

borough delivering new affordable homes, jobs and community benefits.

- 2. That council assembly commends this administration's approach to regeneration, which has secured the second highest level of affordable house-building in the country, with 3,760 new affordable homes built in Southwark between 2010-11 and 2014-15.
- 3. That council assembly welcomes this administration's commitment to ensuring regeneration benefits local people by delivering affordable homes to rent and for low cost home ownership, building new community facilities and creating jobs and opportunities for Southwark residents.
- 4. That council assembly notes that Southwark also has the most ambitious council house building programme in the country 11,000 new council homes built by 2043, with the first 1,500 by 2018, with every one of the new homes available to Southwark residents at council rents.
- 5. That council assembly calls on other London boroughs to play their part in solving London's housing crisis by following Southwark's lead and building new affordable homes.
- 6. That council assembly condemns the previous Liberal Democrat and Conservative Coalition government's cut to the affordable housing grant, which has made it more difficult for local authorities to build new council homes.
- 7. That council assembly also condemns the government's proposals to limit new affordable housing and to force the sell off of council homes through the Housing and Planning Bill, which will significantly reduce council housing in Southwark, damage our ability to build much needed new homes and lead to an increase in homelessness and overcrowding.
- 8. That council assembly calls on the cabinet to:
  - Work with partners across the borough to increase local employment in construction so that Southwark residents are able to take advantage of opportunities from regeneration programmes.
  - Lobby the government to reconsider it's disastrous proposals on the forced sale of council homes.
  - Lobby the government for an exemption for local authorities on council house building programmes from 'starter home' quotas, which will be unaffordable for the majority of Southwark residents, to ensure new homes in the borough are genuinely affordable to households on lower incomes.

# **Environment and public realm**

- 9. That council assembly recognises the importance of ensuring development in our borough is sustainable and welcomes this administration's commitment to the environment, including:
  - Reducing the amount of waste sent to landfill to less than 1%, with Southwark now the best recycling borough in inner city London.
  - Committing to run entirely on green energy by 2050.

- Delivering a new energy hub that will deliver zero-carbon, affordable heat and hot water to residents and businesses across Elephant Park.
- 10. That council assembly recognises that poor air quality is a significant problem for Southwark and that 28,800 children in our borough breathe poor air and approximately 110 people die in Southwark prematurely every year from poor air quality. Council assembly therefore calls on Transport for London (TfL) to take action on air quality and to extend the ultra low emissions zone to cover the whole borough and the rest of inner London.
- 11. That council assembly reaffirms the council's formal objection to TfL's plans for the new Silvertown Tunnel due to the negative impact increased congestion will have on air pollution levels in Southwark, particularly on approaches to the Rotherhithe tunnel, and calls on TfL to address the council's concerns and recommendations in its proposals.
- 12. That council assembly welcomes this administration's commitment to sustainable transport, to promote active journeys, minimise the environmental impact of transport and improve the public realm to make the borough a safer, cleaner and healthier place to live and work.
- 13. That council assembly welcomes the 2.7 miles of quietways that have already been introduced in the borough and the commitment to deliver 21.26 more miles, as well as the introduction of the Southwark Spine, which will improve cycling in the borough and help increase the number of people choosing to cycle.
- 14. That council assembly welcomes the steps being taken to improve the public realm, including at Canada Water, Peckham and the Aylesbury, to clean up the borough's high streets, such as Rye Lane and Walworth Road, and to invest in the social infrastructure of our borough, including new libraries, a new leisure centre and new parks, such as the new Camberwell library, the new Castle leisure centre and a £6m investment in 6 parks around Elephant and Castle.

# TRANSPORT IN ROTHERHITHE

That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set out below, be noted:

- 1. That council assembly recognises that there are significant traffic problems on the Rotherhithe peninsula, with the high demand for river crossings making the Rotherhithe area particularly susceptible to congestion from tunnel related traffic, which is detrimental to the local environment, particularly air quality, and can make local trips difficult.
- 2. That council assembly further recognises that the significant growth planned in the Canada Water area, including an increase in new homes and job opportunities, will require a significant investment in transport infrastructure.
- 3. That council assembly therefore calls on Transport for London and the Mayor of London to:
  - Upgrade the existing public transport network, including increasing capacity on

the overground, tube and buses

- Take action to tackle congestion on Jamaica Road
- Enhance pedestrian and cycle links and bring forward plans for a pedestrian and cycling bridge from Rotherhithe to Canary Wharf to alleviate congestion
- Extend the cycle hire scheme to Rotherhithe
- Explore means of integrating river transport into the network to make sure that residents in Rotherhithe get the full benefit from the river as a mode of transport
- Address in a full and proper manner the concerns and recommendations raised by the council in relation to the proposals for the new Silvertown Tunnel, which will impact negatively on the quality of life of a vast number of people who live and work in the borough.

# THE POWER TO SET A REAL LIVING WAGE

That the motion referred from council assembly as a recommendation to cabinet, set out below, be noted:

- 1. That council assembly welcomes the cross-party support for the London Living Wage since the motion agreed by council in November 2008 and the steps taken in Southwark in 2012 to introduce the London Living Wage for all staff, including contractors as well as the council's directly employed staff.
- 2. That council assembly notes the progress in implementing the London Living Wage policy in Southwark and the proposal for a Living Wage Zone as part of the Canada Water regeneration area.
- 3. That council assembly welcomes the council's on-going work to support the Living Wage, including:
  - Celebrating employers who are promoting and encouraging the practice of paying the Living Wage to apprentices through our Southwark apprenticeship standards.
  - Working with organisations across London to inform the development of new policy and activities relating to Living Wage through the upcoming Living Wage Symposium.
  - Supporting the creation of a London Living Wage zone at More London.
- 4. That council assembly further notes that Preston City Council in partnership with 'Unlock Democracy' is considering submitting the following proposal to government under the Sustainable Communities Act:

'To delegate power to local authorities to compel all private and public sector employers within their area to pay the Living Wage. The rate of the Living Wage to be determined in accordance with the rates set by the Living Wage

# Foundation for London and outside London.'

- 5. That council assembly believes that this power could reduce in-work poverty in Southwark and benefit the local economy through a multiplier effect in each local authority area it is introduced.
- 6. That council assembly further believes that as part of the negotiating process with the relevant Secretary of State, all or some of the benefits to government through increased income tax revenue and reduced welfare spending be used to enforce the new power and help local businesses which may struggle to move to the new rate. The case should also be strongly made for additional resources, so that councils can enforce the Living Wage effectively.
- 7. That council assembly therefore calls on the cabinet to express its interest in joining Preston City Council in any collective submission to the government under the Sustainable Communities Act, and to work together with the Unlock Democracy campaign to gain support for the proposal from other councils in London and across the country.

# **BLACKLISTING**

That the motion referred from council assembly, set out at paragraphs 1-5 below, and the recommendation from overview and scrutiny committee on 10 March 2016, set out at paragraph 6 below, be noted.

That it be agreed that officers consider the policy implications of the motion and recommendation from the overview and scrutiny committee and bring a report back to cabinet.

- 1. That council assembly is aware of the destructive practice of blacklisting that occurred for decades in the UK construction industry and the disastrous effects it had on many of the workers that were included on the blacklist.
- 2. That council assembly notes that most of the workers on the blacklist of The Consulting Association were trade unionists, many of them were blacklisted for raising legitimate health and safety concerns with their employer.
- 3. That council assembly recognise that because of this administration's commitment to new affordable housing, lots of new homes are being built in Southwark, which is also providing opportunities for local people in construction work. We take the safety of our residents, staff and contractors very seriously and believe strongly that people who raise health and safety concerns should not be blighted for their working life through blacklisting.
- 4. That council assembly notes that the council already has a process in place for Major Works contracts to identify any companies that have made use of the blacklist in the past to ensure that they have put in place actions to prevent such behaviour recurring and to compensate those victimised by the practice. Council assembly believes that this good practice should be adopted in its other contracts.
- 5. That this council is determined that blacklisting should never occur again and calls on cabinet to:

- Make provision in Southwark Council's public tendering procedures to exclude blacklisters from public contracts if they are either still blacklisting or have not put into place genuine actions agreed by the blacklisted workers or their representatives concerning past blacklisting activities
- Make provision in the council's terms and conditions for public works that
  provide for the termination of the contract if a supplier is found to engage in
  blacklisting activities during the course of that contract
- Make provision to include blacklisting and trade union membership in the prequalification questionnaire for new construction contracts.
- 6. That any policy developed to implement the council motion on blacklisting should include provision to examine the actions of parent and subsidiary companies.

# 17. MINUTES

# **RESOLVED:**

That the closed minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2016 be approved as a correct record and signed by the chair.

Meeting ended at 5.56 pm.

**CHAIR:** 

**DATED:** 

DEADLINE FOR NOTIFICATION OF CALL-IN UNDER SECTION 21 OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES IS MIDNIGHT, THURSDAY 24 MARCH 2016.

THE ABOVE DECISIONS WILL NOT BE IMPLEMENTABLE UNTIL AFTER THAT DATE. SHOULD A DECISION OF THE CABINET BE CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY, THEN THE RELEVANT DECISION WILL BE HELD IN ABEYANCE PENDING THE OUTCOME OF SCRUTINY CONSIDERATION.